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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

In a letter from Chattahoochee dated December 5, 1835,
the writer mentions that the arsenal in that city is under
construction. He says, "The brickwork of the main building
is completed and the building will, when finished, give the
place an interest and worth it could never otherwise possess".

The original buildings in the complex included officers
quarters, barracks, magazines, business offices, and a barn,
all of brick. All but the magazines were enclosed by a wall
twelve feet high and thirty inches thick. The arsenal proper
formed a quadrangle of four acres at its exterior walls. Nine
of the original thirteen buildings were erected to face the
quadrangle formed in part by the back walls. (See attached
diagram)

The present administration offices for the Florida State
Hospital are housed in the original officer's barracks. Rather
elegant in appearance, the two-story structure has a central
section of brick with the end rooms on both stories having
been stuccoed over. There are one-story wings on either end
of the buildings which are of frame construction. Decorative
details are focused on the central section of the building
and take the form of arching brackets springing from square
posts and an elaborately carved balustrade. These Victpftian
details were probably added in the late 1880's although this
has not been documented. The entire wall surface of the east
elevation is divided into fourteen equal sections. This has
been accomplished through the grouping of windows with pilaster
between the groups and the placement of the porch posts, all
at regular intervals. This geometric division of the wall
surface gives a feeling of solidity to the building. The main
entrance is a small late Geo an doorway with a cornice on
brackets and a transom above the panelled door. Windows are
six llght sash on the central section and four light sash an
the wings. One dormer window projects from the hlpped/gqbfi« s
which has a brick chlmney at each of its four corners‘ Theé.
foundation of the house is high, sitting well above/gvoundé VE
level and latticed between its supporting piers.
ground is a large basement area used originally as ggrvants
quarters and having numerous fireplaces. ié; N%HON‘*

\ n;:(,\él_“

The rear of the building repeats the basic patteag
the front, but in reverse order. The two-story veran ﬁla
the tiny central section of the building which is one-story
in height. The central projecting gable is supported by four
Doric columns with a plain architrave above. Balustrade and
arching brackets match those on the front and stone quoins
have been added to the brickwork.
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7. DESCRIPTION -2-

Construction of the arsenal in what was at that time, a
wilderness, was quite a feat. When suitable building stone
could not be found along the banks of the Apalachicola River,
it was decided that bricks would be made on the site. Benjamin
Chaiyes was contracted for this purpose and the bricks were
made from alluvial clay heavily tempered with sand. English
artisans were imported to do the bricklaying. Early in 1835,
granite arrived from Maine for the sills, caps and coping. The
arsenal was finally completed in 1839 having been fiye€ years
in the building. 5
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The first existing reference to an arsenal at Chattahoo-
chee was in the form of a resolution offered to the Legisla-
tive Council of the Territory on January 31, 1832. Joseph M.
White, the Territorial Delegate in Congress secured inclusion
of an item "For an arsenal in Florida, twenty thousand dollars,'
in the "Appropriations for the support of the Army for 1832."
This was approved April 5, 1832. Selection of the site for
the arsenal was made by Bvt. Second Lt. John Hills. The land
which he selected was then in the public domain and was
reserved for the arsenal by presidential order. Since there
were no available building materials and a lack of skilled
workmen nearby, it would seem that the only significant
advantage of the site was available transportation on the riven

Construction of the arsenal proceeded slowly due to un-
reliable labor and building materials not delivered on schedulsg
It was finally completed in 1839, with the project having cost
a total of $226,932.50.

At the beginning of the Civil War, the arsenal was used
for mustering the Confederate troops into service. 1In the
Spring of 1862, the Sixth Florida Infantry was organized here.
At the close of thewar the request was made and granted that
the arsenal. be used as a State Penitentiary. The condition
of the arsenal in 1869 was described by the Commander of the
Penitentiary as follows: "During the war it was occupied by
the Confederate Army and fell into bad repair, and met with
little better treatment in United States hands."

In 1876, the buildings were taken over by the Florida
State Hospital for use as a mental institution. The Florida
State Hospital is one of the largest institutions of its kind
in the United States. Many improvements and additions have
been made to the complex singe it became a hospital.. .
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the c-iteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:
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